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Appeal No: V2/4-6/RA1 2021

:: ORDER-IN-APPEAL ::

The below mentioned appeals have been filed by the Appellants
(hereinafter referred to as “Appellant No. 1 to Appellant No. 3"), as detailed in
Table below against Order-in-Original No. 08/JC/VM/2020-21 dated 08.12.2020
(hereinafter referred to as ‘impugned order’) passed by the Joint Commissioner,

Central GST and Central Excise, Rajkot (hereinafter referred to as ‘adjudicating

authority’):-
St. Appeal No. Appellants Name & Address of the
No. Appellant

1. | V2/06/RAJ/2021 Appellant No.1 | 8-A National Highway,
I Saratanpar-363622,Tal-

M/s Famous Vitrified Pvt Ltd, ‘
|
Wankaner, Distt: Morbi, Gujarat |

. Shri Piyush S. Sanariya ]
2. | V2/05/RAJ/2021 | Appellant No.2 | Silver Stone 03, Street No. 09,
Behind The Imperial Heights,
Off 150 Feet Ring Road, Off
Nana Mauva Road, Rajkot

Shri Hirenbhai Rasiklal Kanani
3. | V2/04/RAJ/2021 Appellant No.3 | Director of M/s Famous Vitrified
Pvt Limited,

8-A National Highway,
Saratanpar-363622,
Tal-Wankaner, Distt: Morbi,
Gujarat

2. The facts of the case, in brief, are that Appellant No. 1 was engaged in
manufacture and removal of excisable goods i.e. “Polished Vitrified Tiles” falling
under Chapter Sub Heading No. 69079090 of the Central Excise Tariff Act, 1985
and was holding Central Excise Registration No. AABCF5787FEM001. Intelligence
gathered by the Directorate General of Central Excise Intelligence, Zonal Unit,
Ahmedabad indicated that various Tile manufacturers of Morbi were indulging in
malpractices in connivance with Shroffs / Brokers and thereby engaged in large
scale evasion of Central Excise duty. Simultaneous searches were carried out on
22.12.2015 at the premises of Shroffs in Rajkot and Morbi and various
incriminating documents were seized. On scrutiny of said documents and
Statements tendered by the said Shroffs, it was revealed that huge amounts of
cash were deposited from all over India into bank accounts managed by said

Shroffs and such cash amounts were passed on to Tile Manufacturers through

and 31.12.2015 at the premises of
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Appeal No: V2/4-6/RAJ/2021

Brokers/Middlemen/Cash Handlers engaged by the Tile manufacturers and

certain incriminating documents were seized.

2.1 Investigation carried out revealed that the Shroffs opened bank accounts
in the names of their firms and passed on the bank account details to the Tile
manufacturers through their Brokers/Middiemen. The Tile manufacturers further
passed on the bank account details to their customers/ buyers with instructions
to deposit the cash in respect of the goods sold to them without bills into these
accounts. After depositing the cash, the customers used to inform the Tile
manufacturers, who in turn would inform the Brokers or directly to the Shroffs.
Details of such cash deposit alongwith the copies of pay-in-slips were
communicated to the manufacturers by the Customers. The Shroffs on
confirming the receipt of the cash in their bank accounts, passed on the cash to
the Brokers after deducting their commission from it. The Brokers further
handed over the cash to the Tile manufacturers after deducting their
commission. This way the sale proceeds of an illicit transaction was routed from

buyers of goods to Tile manufacturers through Shroffs and Brokers.

2.2 During scrutiny of documents seized from the office premises of M/s K.N.
Brothers, Rajkot, Shroff and Shri Pravin Shirvi, Broker, it was revealed that the
said Shroff had received total amount of Rs. 13,48,41,240/- in their bank
accounts during the period from 18.04.2014 to 31.10.2015, which were passed
on to Appellant No. 1 in cash through Shri Pravin Shirvi, Broker. The said amount

was alleged to be sale proceeds of goods removed clandestinely by Appellant No.
L -

3. On the basis of investigations carried out a Show Cause Notice No.
DGGIVAZU/36-25/2019-20 dated 4.5.2019 was issued to Appellant No. 1 calling
them to show cause as to why Central Excise duty amounting to Rs.
1,67,13,094/- should not be demanded and recovered from them under proviso
to Section 11A(4) of the erstwhile Central Excise Act, 1944 (hereinafter referred
to as “Act”) alongwith interest under Section 11AA of the Act and also proposing
imposition of penalty under Section 11AC of the Act and fine in lieu of
confiscation under Section 34 of the Act. The Show Cause Notice also proposed
imposition of penalty upon Appellant Mo. 2 and Appellant No. 3 under Rule 26(1)

of the Central Excise Rules, 2002(hereinafter referred to as “Rules”).

3.1 The above said Show Cause Notice was adjudicated vide the impugned
order wherein the demand of Central Excise duty amounting to Rs.1,67,13,094/-
was confirmed under Section 11A(4) along with interest under Section 11AA of

the Act. The impugned order-imposed penalty of Rs. 1,67,13,094/- under Section

.
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Appeal No: Y2/4-6/RAJ/2021

11AC of the Act upon Appellant No. 1 with option of reduced penalty as

envisaged under provisions of Section 11AC of the Act. The impugned order also

imposed penalty of Rs. 50,00,000/- each upon Appellant No. 2 and Appellant No.
3 under Rule 26(1) of the Rules.

4.

Being aggrieved by the impugned order, Appellant Nos. 1 to 3 have

preferred appeals on various grounds, inter alia, as below :-

Appellant No. 1:-

()

(i1)

(iii)

The adjudicating authority has relied upon Statements of Shroff,
Middleman/Broker and Partners while confirming the demand raised in
the show cause notice. However, the adjudicating authority has passed
the order without allowing cross examination of Departmental
witnesses in spite of specific request made for the same. It is settled
position of law that any statement recorded under Section 14 of the
Central Excise Act, 1944 can be admitted as evidence only when its
authenticity is established under provisions of Section 9D(1) of the Act
and relied upon following case laws:

(a) J.K. Cigarettes Ltd. Vs. CCE - 2009 (242) ELT 189 (Del).

(b) M/s Jindal Drugs Pvt Ltd -2016 (340) E.L.T. 67 (P & H)

(c) Ambika International - 2018 (361) E.L.T. 90 (P & H)

(d) G-Tech Industries - 2016 (339) E.L.T. 209 (P & H)

(e) Flevel International -2016(332)E.L.T. 416 (Del.)

() PMS International-2014-TIOL-1669-CESTAT-DEL.

(g) Basudev Garg -2013(294)E.L.T. 353 (Del.)

(h) Andaman Timber Industries -2015-TIOL-255-SC-CX

(i) Rajam Industries (P) Ltd.-2010 (255)E.L.T. 161 (Mad.)

(j) Parmarth Iron Pvt. Ltd - 2010 (255) E.L.T. 496 (All.)

In view of the provisions of Section 9D of the Central Excise Act, 1944
and settled position of law by way of above referred judgments, since
cross examination of departmental witnesses were not allowed their
statements cannot be relied upon while passing the order and
determining the duty amount payable by it. Especially when, there is
no other evidence except so called oral evidences in the form of those
statements and un-authenticated third-party private records.
Therefore, in view of the above, impugned order passed by the

learned Joint Commissioner is liable to be set aside on this ground too.

The adjudicating authority has not neutrally evaluated the evidences
as well as submission made by it but heavily relied upon the general
statements of Shroff, Middleman/Broker, statements of partners as

j}s\snly scan copy of private records of Shri Pravin Shirvi and K. N.

- qutha{a‘(epmduced in the SCN. He has not even cared to see that
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(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Appeal No; V2/4-6/RA0/ 2021

whether such general statements are corresponding to the documents

or otherwise.

According to the investigation, the middleman/broker Shri Pravin
Shirvi, Morbi in his statement had given CODE name of the person who
was collecting cash from him was “Piyush”. Both the directors Shri
Adroja Rajesh and Godasara Ashwin had stated his Name with Milan
Detroja in their statement recorded under Section 14 of Central Excise
Act, 1944, but both have not in clear terms stated alone role of Piyush
and even both statements are not similar to the effect of role of
Piyush. Piyush had rejected the story of investigation and there was no
consistency in the statements of said two directors about role of
Piyush, why statement of Milan Detroja and main director Hiren R.
Kanani were not recorded. When Piyush himself denies all these
transactions except 4-5, how statement of other can be relied upon.
Thus, in absence of the specific oral evidence as well documentary

evidences order passed by the learned Joint Commissioner is not

maintainable.

That one of the directors who was handling day to day business has
executed affidavit before notary inter alia deposing that “ there was
no person namely “Piyush” or “Piyush S. Sanariya” working in our
company nor working for company nor authorized to work on behalf of
company nor allowed to work with anyone including Milan Detroja
since inception of the company to till dated 31.10.2015.

That root cause of investigation which lead to demand of Central
Excise duty viz. Bank Statements of various bank accounts (like 8
Scanned Images at page 8 to 15 of the SCN) referred in Statement
dated 23.12.2015 of Shri Lalit Ashumal Gangawani, Actual Owner of
M/s. K. N. Brothers, Rajkot, and also other bank accounts referred in
Annexure - A to the SCN are neither supplied with SCN nor relied upon
for demanding the duty. The same are neither seized from the
premises of M/s. K. N. Brother nor produced by any of the person viz.
owner of M/s K.N. Brother during recording of their statements. When
the source of the amount received by the Shroff is not relied upon,
how documents of middleman/broker can be relied upon? Certainly,
same cannot be relied upon as Annexure - A is said to have been
prepared on the basis of said two documents viz. Bank Statements of

Shroff based at Rajkot and Daily Sheets maintained by the

SN, Page 6 of 27



Appeal No: V2/4-6/RA 2021

middlemen/brokers of Morbi. In absence of relying upon proof of
receipt of fund by Shroff, it cannot be presumed that
middlemen/brokers had received the funds which were distributed to

tile manufacturer.

(vii) That the adjudicating authority based on the scan copy of certain bank
accounts of Shroff and scan copy of private records of
middleman/broker and general statements of Shroff and
middleman/broker tried to discard vital discrepancies raised by the
appellant without any cogent grounds. There is no link between the
bank accounts of Shroff and private records of middleman/broker.
Therefore, in absence of receipt of cash by the Shroff, link of such
payment to middleman/broker and payment of cash to appellant, it is
erroneous to uphold the allegations against appellant. He not only
failed to judge the allegations, documentary evidences and defence
neutrally but also failed as quasi-judicial authority and following
principal of natural justice by passing speaking order as well as
following judicial discipline too. Therefore, impugned order passed by

him is liable to be set aside on this ground too.

(viii) That the investigation has prepared Annexure - A to the SCN based on
the private records of Shri Parvin Shirvi i.e. loose papers wherein
wherever “Ravi” is written are considered as entries of appellant in
spite of fact that author of the said documents in his statement given
name of “Hitesh(Ravi)” as person of M/s. Famous Ceramic. Thus, the
adjudicating authority simply based on the scan copy of few pages of
such private record of Pravin Shirvi’s reproduced in the SCN and said
vague statements upheld the allegations. Therefore, order passed by

him is liable to be set aside on this ground too.

(ix) That in the entire case except for so called evidences of receipt of
money from the buyers of tiles that too without identity of buyers of
the goods as well as identity of receiver of such cash from the
middleman, no other evidence of manufacture of tiles, procurement of
raw materals including fuel and power for manufacture of tiles,
deployment of staff, manufacture, transportation of raw materials as
well as finished goods, payment to all including raw material suppliers,
transporters etc. in cash, no inculpatory statement of manufacturer

_—viz._appellant, no statement of any of buyer, no statement of

2 e EE)

f{é*f;f'i:_'{’andqa}yers who transported raw materials, who transported finished
ford i LR
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Appeal No: V2/4-6/RAN 2021

goods etc. are relied upon or even available. It is settled position of
law that in absence of such evidences, grave allegations clandestine
removal cannot sustain. It is also settled position of law that grave
allegation of clandestine removal cannot sustain on the basis of
assumption and presumption and relied upon following case laws:

(a) Synergy Steels Ltd.- 2020 (372) ELT 129 (Tri. - Del.)

(b) SavitriConcast Ltd. - 2015 (329) ELT 213 (Tri. - Del.)

(c) Aswani& Co. - 2015 (327) ELT 81 (Tri. - Del.)

(cl) Shiv Prasad Mills Pvt. Ltd. - 2015 (329) ELT 250 (Tri. - Del.)

(¢) Shree MarutiFabrics - 2014 (311) ELT 345 (Tri. - Ahmd.)

That it is not a matter of dispute that Tiles were notified at Sr. No. 58
and 59 under Notification No. 49/2008-C.E.(N.T.) dated 24.12.2008, as
amended, issued under Section 4A of the Central Excise Act, 1944.
Accordingly, as provided under Section 4A ibid, duty of excise was
payable on the retail sale price declared on the goods less permissible
abatement @ 45%. Thus, duty of excise was payable @ 12.36% (upto
28.02.2015) and @ 12.50% with effect from 01.03.2015 on the 55% of
retail sale price (RSP/MRP) declared on the goods/packages. That the
investigation has nowhere made any attempt to find out actual
quantity of tiles manufactured and cleared clandestinely. No attempt
was made to know whether goods were cleared with declaration of
RSP/MRP or without declaration of RSP/MRP on the goods/packages.
There is no evidence adduced in the impugned show cause notice
about any case booked by the metrology department of various states
across India against appellant or other tile manufacturers that goods
were sold by it without declaring RSP/MRP. Though there is no
evidence of manufacture and clearance of goods that too without
declaration of RSP/MRP it is not only alleged but also duty is assessed
considering the so called alleged realised value as abated value
without any legal backing. Neither Section 4A ibid nor rules made
there under provides like that to assess duty by taking realised value
or transaction value as abated value and the investigation has failed to
follow the said provisions. Therefore, sake of argument it is presumed
that if RSP/MRP was not declared on packages then also it has to be
determined in the prescribed manner i.e. as per Section 4A(4) read
with Rule 4(i)of Central Excise (Determination of Retail Sale Price of
Excisable Goods) Rules, 2008 and not by any other manner. As per the
said provisions, highest of the RSP/MRP declared on the goods during
the previous or succeeding months is to be taken for the purpose of

assessment and in absence of other details of quantity etc. such

TR o
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Appeal No: V2/4-6/RAN 2011

realised value duty cannot be quantified. In any case duty has to be
calculated after allowing abatement @ 45%.

(xi) That all the allegations are baseless and totally unsubstantiated,

therefore, question of alleged suppression of facts etc. also does not
arise. None of the situation suppression of facts, wilful mis-statement,

fraud, collusion etc. as stated in Section 11A(4) of the Central Excise

Act, 1944 exists in the instant case but it is alleged suppression of

facts in the impugned notice based on the above referred general

allegation.

Appellant No. 2:-

(1)

(i1)

(iif)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

That his company has already filed appeal against the
impugned order as per the submission made therein contending
that impugned order is liable to be set aside in limine and
therefore, order imposing penalty upon him is also liable to be set
aside.

That his Statements dated 13.04.2019 is exculpatory as discussed in
the SCN and therefore, all the allegations made in impugned SCN
are totally baseless and imagination of the investigation only.

That no penalty is imposable upon them under Rule 26(1) of the
Central Excise Rules, 2002, as there is no reason to believe on their
part that goods were liable to confiscation.

That there it is absolutely essential to bring out specific role played
by an individual which made certain goods liable for confiscation
under the Central Excise Act, 1944. Not only this, it is also required
to be established that the said individual was aware of the fact
that the goods were liable for confiscation under the Act/Rule. In
view of the exculpatory statement except for 4-5 occasion
collection of cash for the company, it cannot be alleged that he
had reason to believe that goods were liable for confiscation.

That the impugned notice does not define as to how he was liable
to penalty under Rule 26(1), except reproducing the language used
in the said rule and making baseless allegations. There is not a
single documentary evidence to sustain the allegations. The
following case laws supporting the above views :

(a) Manoj Kumar Pani - 2020 (260) ELT 92 (Tri. Delhi)

In view of above, no penalty is imposable upon them under Rule
;{m_jxpf the Central Excise Rules, 2002.

- -,
A ATORT 3.
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Appellant No. 3:-

()

(1)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

That his company has already filed appeal against the
impugned order as per the submission made therein contending
that impugned order is liable to be set aside in limine and
therefore, order imposing penalty upon them is also liable to be set
aside.

That the allegation made in the SCN are totally baseless and
contrary to facts available on records as discussed in detailed in
grounds of appeal n appeal filed by his company. There was no
manufacture and clearance of vitrified tiles without payment of
duty of excise and without issue of invoice. Apart from that during
the course of investigation not a single statement of appellant was
recorded by the investigation, therefore, all the allegations made
in the SCN were totally baseless and imagination of the
investigation only. In absence of inculpatory statement guestion of
imposition of penalty upon him does not arise at all. In the instant
case in absence of any statement of the appellant under Section
14 of Central Excise Act, 1944, no penalty can be imposed; amongst
other the appellant refers and relies upon following decisions:

(a) Dabesh Prasad Nanda - 2016 (332) E.L.T. 773(Tri. Delhi)

(b)  Marayani Textiles Mills - 2010 (259) E.L.T. 66 (Tri. Ahmd.)
(c) Shakti Patel - 2018 (361) E.L.T. 382 (Tri. Mumbai)

(d) Warren Trading Pvt. Ltd.- 2008 (222) E.L.T.313 (Tri. Ahmd.)

That no penalty is imposable upon them under Rule 26(1) of the
Central Excise Rules, 2002, as there is no reason to believe on their
part that goods were liable to confiscation.

That there is no single documentary evidence to sustain the
allegations; that the seized documents are not at all sustainable as
evidence for the reasons detailed in reply filed by the Appellant
Mo. 1. Investigating officers has not recorded statement of any
buyers, transporter, supplier etc. Allegation of clandestine
manufacture and removal of goods itself is fallacious.

That even duty demand has been worked out based on adverse
inference drawn by investigation from the seized documents which
itself are not sustainable evidence for various reasons discussed by
their firm i.e. Appellant No.1 in their reply; that under the given

circumstances no penalty can be imposed upon them under Rule
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(a) Manoj Kumar Pani - 2020 (260) ELT 92 (Tri. Delhi)

(b) Mek Slotted Angles (1) Ltd. - 2009 (247) ELT 364 (Tri. Mumbai)

(c) Aarti Steel Industries - 2010 (262) ELT 462 (Tri. Mumbai)

(d) Nirmal Inductomelt Pvt. Ltd. - 2010 (259) ELT 243 (Tri. Delhi)
(vi)  In view of above, no penalty is imposable upon them under Rule 26

of the Central Excise Rules, 2002.

4. Personal Hearing in the matter was scheduled on 16.11.2021. Shri P.D.
Rachchh, Advocate, appeared on behalf of Appellant No. 1, 2 & 3. He reiterated
the submissions made in appeal memorandum as well as in synopsis submitted
during hearing. He also submitted following case law in support of his arguments
during the hearing.

(a) Ravi Foods Pvt. Ltd. -2011(266)E.L.T. 399( Tri. Banglore)

(b) ACME Ceramics -2014(304)E.L.T. 542( Tri. Ahmd.)

5. | have carefully gone through the facts of the case, the impugned order,
the appeal memoranda and written as well as oral submissions made by the
Appellants. The issue to be decided in the case is whether the impugned order,
in the facts of this case, confirming demand on Appellant No. 1 and imposing

penalty on Appellant Nos. 1 to 3 is correct, legal and proper or not.

6. On perusal of records, | find that an offence case was booked by the
officers of Directorate General of Central Excise Intelligence, Ahmedabad
against Appellant No. 1 for clandestine removal of goods. S5imultaneous searches
carried out at the premises of Shroff / Brokers / Middlemen situated in Rajkot
and Morbi resulted in recovery of various incriminating documents indicating
huge amount of cash transactions. On the basis of investigation carried out by
the DGCEI, it appeared that various Tile manufacturers of Morbi were indulged in
malpractices in connivance with Shroffs / Brokers and thereby engaged in large
scale evasion of Central Excise duty. During investigation, it also appeared that
the Tile manufacturers sold goods without payment of duty and collected sale
proceeds from their buyers in cash through said Shroff/Brokers/ middlemen. As
per the modus operandi unearthed by the DGCEI, the Tile manufacturers passed
on the bank account details of the Shroffs to their buyers with instructions to
deposit the cash in respect of the goods sold to them without bills into these
accounts. After depositing the cash, the buyers used to inform the Tile
manufacturers, who in turn would inform the Brokers or directly to the Shroffs.
Details of such cash deposit along with the copies of pay-in-slips were
communicated to the Tile manufacturers by the Customers. The Shroffs on

confirming the receipt of the cash in their bank accounts, passed on the cash to

the cash to the Tile manufacturers after deducting their
Page 11 of 27
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commission. This way the sale proceeds was routed through

Shroffs/Brokers/ middlemen.

T | find from the case records that the DGCEl had covered 4 Shroffs and 4
brokers/middlemen during investigation, which revealed that 186 manufacturers
were routing sale proceeds of illicit transactions through the said
Shroffs/Brokers/Middlemen. | find that the DGCEl has, inter alia, relied upon
evidences collected from the premises of Shri K.N. Brothers, Rajkot, Shroff, and
Shri Pravin Shirvi, Morbi, Broker, to allege clandestine removal of goods by the
Appellant herein. It is settled position of law that in the case involving
clandestine removal of goods, initial burden of proof is on the Department to
prove the charges. Hence, it would be pertinent to examine the said evidences
gathered by the DGCEl and relied upon by the adjudicating authority in the
impugned order to confirm the demand of Central Excise duty.

7.1. | find that during search carried out at the office premises of M/s K.N.
Brothers, Rajkot, Shroff, on 22.12.2015, certain private records were seized:
The said private records contained bank statements of various bank accounts
operated by M/s K.N. Brothers, sample of which is reproduced in the Show Cause
Motice. | find that the said bank statements contained details like particulars,
deposit amount, initiating branch code etc. Further, it was mentioned in
handwritten form the name of city from where the amount was deposited and

code name of concerned middlemen/Broker to whom they had handed over the
said cash amount.

7.2. | have gone through the Statement of Shri Lalit Ashumal lGangwani,
Owner of M/s K.N. Brothers, Rajkot recorded on 23.12.2015 under Section 14 of
the Act. In the said statement, Shri Lalit Ashumal Gangwani, inter alia, deposed
that,

"0.5  Please give details about your work in M/s Ambaji Enterprise. Rajkot

and M/s K.N. Brothers, Rajkot.

ALD We have opened the above mentioned 9 bank accounts and give

the details ol these accounts Lo the Middlemen located in Morbi. These middle
men are working on behall of Tile Manufacturers located in Morbi. These

Middlemen then gives our Bank details to the Tiles Manulacturers of Morbi

who in turn further passes these dewils o their Tiles dealers located all over
India. The Tiles dealers then deposit cash in these accounts as per the
instruction of the ceramic Tiles Manutacturers who in turn inform  the
Middlemen. The Middlemen then inform us about the cash deposited and the
_amme-af the city from where the amount has been deposited. We check all our
ST o,
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bank accounts through online banking system on the computer installed in our
office and take out the printout of the cash amount deposited during the entire
day in all the accounts and mark the details on the printouts. On the same day.
latest by 15:30 hours. we do RTGS to either M/s Siddhanath Agency and or to
M/s Radheyshyam Enterprises in Sakar Complex, Soni Bazar, Rajkot. In lieu
of the RTGS, M/s Siddhanath Agency and or to M/s Radheyshyam Agency
gives the cash amount. The said cash is then distributed to concern

Middlemen.

0Q.6: Please give details of persons who had deposited the amount in your

firms.

A6, We are not aware of any persons who had deposited the cash
amount in our bank accounts. the ceramic Tile Manufacturers direct the
said parties to deposit the amount in cash in these accounts. As already
stated above. we had given our bank accounts details to the middle man who

had in turn given these numbers Lo the Tile Manufacturers.”

7.3 | find that search was carried out at the office premises of Shri
Pravin Shirvi, Morbi, a broker/middlemen, on 23.12.2015 and certain
private records were seized. As reproduced in the Show Cause Notice, the said
private records contained details like name of bank, cash amount, place from
where the amount was deposited in bank, name of the person / authorized
representative who collected the cash from him, date on which cash was handed

over and name of the beneficiary of Tiles manufacturer of Morbi.

7.4 | have gone through the Statement of Shri Pravin Shirvi, Morbi, recorded
on 24.12.2015 under Section 14 of the Act. In the said statement, Shri Pravin
Shirvi, inter alia, deposed that,
“0.4. Please pive the details of Ceramic¢ Tile Manufacturers and Ceramic Tiles
Showroom owners to whom do you gives the cash which you receive from

above mentioned Shroff located in Rajkot.

A 4.1 am disbursing the cash to the following Tiles manufactures:

(1) Sunheart Ceramics
(1) Famous Ceramics
(111) Samrat Sanitary (Sanitary wares manufacturers)
(1v) Sunbeam Ceramics
{v} Ramueo Ceramics
5 rbﬁ Aﬁsh Ceramics (at Kadi-Mansa)
/ ._-:*’:.-;f- + 1G5 g{nlri ('eramics
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-6 : | am showing you page 959 ol seized file (1) (seized from his premises)
which shows the details of transaction dated 31.7.2014. Please go through the
same and explain the entries.

A6 | have gone through all the pages filed in seized lile (1) and | state that all
the documents filed in this file pertains to my business of disbursing cash. |
explain the entries made in page Y59 as under:

(i) The entries pertain to tunsaction made by me on 31.7.2014

(i1} The lefi side shows the amount received by me. .. ...

The right side shows the cash disbursed o respective persons as under:

(i) Rs, 2.78,600/- has been paid in cash to Shri Viren of M/s Sunheart
Ceramics

(12" and 3" entry pertains 1o cash  disbursement to  waich
manutaciurers,

(i) 4™ entry also pertains to cash disbursement 1o watch manufacturers
except of Rs. 307 400/01.00,000/+ 2,07 400/-) where the amount has
been paid w Shin Kanti of Ramco Ceramics).

(v)E™ entry perlains 1o payment made to watch manufacturers.

(v)6" entry pertains to cash payment of Rs, 2,50,000/- to Shri Ravi of
M/s Famous Ceramics. '

(vi) 7% eniry pertains to payment of Rs. 27.00,000/- made to Shri
Nilesh of GEB.

(vii) 8" 1o 11™Mentries pertain to payment made to watch manufacturers.

Thus, in briel. | have made cash payment ol Rs. 2,78.600/- to Shri Viren of
Sunheart Ceramies (Brand name ol MYs. Sunshine Tiles), Rs. 3,07.400/- to Shri
Kanti of M/s Ramco (Brand name of M/s.Ramoji) and Rs. 2.50,000/- to Shri
Ravi of M/s Famous Ceramics on 31.07.2014.

| further state that | have made the entries in similar manner in all the pages
which yvou have seized.

I further state that on the pages where ever the cash have been paid, the name 2
ol the person of Tiles Manufacturers and the name of tile manufacturer has
been mentioned as can be seen above

(1.7, Please give the names ol the tile manufacturer located in Morbi and other
areas to whom yvou have made cash payment?

AT T am giving you the name of the Tile Manmuacturers and also the code
name ol the person and their mobile numbers of the said Tile manufacturer to
whom | have handed cash:

(i) Famous Ceramics (Wall Tiles) - Hitesh { Ravi) 9825150439,

(i) Famous Ceramics (Vitrified tiles)-Piyush - 9727770002,

(1) Exotica Ceramics —hignesh - 9978916203,

(iv)Samrat Samitory Pragjibhai - 9823390308,

{viGangolri Ceramics -Arun (Timber 9099014477,

(vi) Akash Ceramics - Madam - 9923009871 . .
{vit)Sunheatt Ceramics -Viren - 9825627770,

(viii) Sunbeam Ceramics -Sabi-9825052244"
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7.5 | have gone through the Statement of Shri Adroja Rajeshbhai Harilal,
Director of Appellant No.1, recorded on 18.03.2019 under Section 14 of the Act.
In the said statement, Adroja Rajeshbhai Harilal inter alia, deposed that,

Que. 3. Please name the other directors of the company and work look after by
them.

Ans, 3. DBesides me. following are the Directors ol the Company:
I. Shri Hirenbhai Rasikbhar Kanani

2 Shn Ashwinbhai Tarshibhai

3. Shri Savajibhai K. Patel

Further, 1 state that Shri Hirenbhai Rasikbhai Kanani is the main person who 1s
looking after work of overall administration of the company. Finance as well as
sale. marketing and work relating to Banking transactions of the Company.
Shri Ashwinbhai Tarshibhai also looks after production work relating to Kiln.

Que. 6. Please peruse the statement dated 24.12.2015 of Shri Pravin bhai
Shamaji Shirvi. Please offer your comments

Ans 6 1 have gone through the above statements of Shri Pravin bhai Shamaji
Shirvi and after carefully read the same I put my dated signature on the
statement in token ol its correciness and decept that the name mentioned
Pivush (Mab. No 9727770092)" at Sr. no. i1 in answer to question No. 7 is
cousin of Shri Milen Detroja. Pivush works with Shri Milen Detroja in M/s
Famous Vitrified Pvt. Ltd

Ques?  Please see the work-sheet prepared on the basis of the documents along
with the statement dated 24.12.2015 of Shri Pravin bhai Shamaji Shirvi
resumed by the DGCEL which reveals employee of your company viz; Shn
Pivush have collected the cash on various occasion from Shn Pravin bhai -
Shamaji Shirvi. Please peruse and explain the contents mentioned therein.

Ans.7 I don’t know about the cash taken from Pravin bhai Shamaji
Shirvi by Shri Piyush as | look afier the Production work of company. Shri
Milen Detroja and Shri Hirenbhai Rasikbhai Kanani are looking after the sales
and cash transaction of the company and they can explain the cash collected by
Shri Piyush on various dates from Shri Pravin bhai Shamaji Shirvi.

7.6 | have gone through the Statement of Shri Piyush Sanariya recorded on
13.04.2019 under Section 14 of the Act. In the said statement, Shri Piyush
Sanariya inter alia, deposed that,

Ques: 2 Have you worked in M/s Famous Vitrified Pvt Ltd.?

Ans 2 :  No, I am not a salaried employee of M/s Famous Vitrified Pvt. Lid.. 1 am

doing trading of Ceramic products using name of M/s Famous Vitrified Pvt [.1d.
/'ﬁfmm vears and getting commission from other Ceramic tiles manufactures.
,4¢WW?MJH trading of other products viz. Agricultural products. Chemical
f o .rf Producis etcy ol commission basis.

Al
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Que. 4. Do vou have contacts now in M/s Famous Vitified Py Lud. ?

Ans. 4. Yes. | Knew lew emplovees and it's directors. Earlier. my father Shri
Shavjibhai Karshanbhai Sanariva was also director in M/s Famous Vitrified Pvi.
L1, Morbi and now he is shareholder with 3.17%.

Oue. 5 Do vou gol written permission from M/s Famous Virfied Pyt Lid. Morbi
for trading on behall of them?”!

Ans. 5 No | have not taken written permission from M/s Famous Vitihied Py Lid
for using their name. But the directors of M/s Famous Vitrified Pvt, Lid. knows
about it and they never objected.

Gue. O Please peruse the statement dated 24122015 ol Shri Pravin bhai
Shamaji Shirvi. Please offer your comments?

Ans.6 | have gone through the above statements of Shr Pravin bhai Shamap
Shirvi and alter carefully read the same | put my dated signature on the statement in
token of its correctness and accepl that the name mentioned “Pivush (Mob. No
O727770092)" at Sr. no. 1i against Famous Ceramics (Vitrified tiles) in answer to
question No. 7 is mine. Mobile No 9727770092 also belongs 1o me, Ravibhai
(YE25827596) partner in M/s Famous Ceramic introduced me 10 Shn Pravin bhai
Shamaji Shirvi in 2010 in function and | introduced mysell’ as marketing person of
Famous Vitrified Pvt, Lid. to Shri Pravin bhai Shamji Shirvi,

Ques 7:- Please seen the work-sheet prepared on the basis of the documents along
with the statement dated 24.12.2015 ol Sha Pravin bhai Shamji Shirvi resumed by
the DGCED which reveals that vou have collected the cash on various oceasion on
behalf of M/s. Famous Vitrified Pyt Lid . Please peruse and explain the contents
mentioned therein?

Ans7 | have collected cash on 4-3 aceasions on behall of MYs. Famous Vitrified
P, L.

(Jue 8 : Please tell the names or contract no. ol person who gave vou instructions on
phone from M/s. Famous Vitrified Pvt Lid 1o collect cash proceeds?

Ansg : Now. | am unable to remember the names and phone no. ol the person
who gave me instructions to collect cash amounts ol M/s. Famous Vitrified Pyvi. Lid

Que Y : Please give names of persons of M/s, Famous Vitrified Pyt Lid o whom
the said cash amount collected by vou on behalf of M/s. Famous Vitrilied Pvi. Lid
was handed over by you?

Ans.Y ; Now._ | am unable to remember the names and phone no. of said person.

1.7 | have gone through the Statement of Ghodasara Ashwinbhai,
Director of the Appellant No.1, recorded on 22.04.2019 under Section 14 of the
Act. In the said statement, Shri Ashwinbhai, inter alia, admitted that during the
period 2014-15 to 2015-16, Shri Piyush Sanariya (9727770092) was handling the
rates and sales related matter along cash transaction of the Appellant No.1. Shri
Ashwin Ghodasara has further stated that though Shri Piyushbhai Sanariya was
uffiq:_i:g_iﬁ__y, ot an employee of the company but he was drawing salary in cash for

,h;sﬁru?k::[‘ ted to sales of tiles belonging to the company as well as other
f e -\' i
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related transactions. He also stated that Shri Savjibhai Sanariya , father of Shri
Piyush Sanariya, is one of the Directer of the Appellant no. 1 but due to his old

age his son Shri Piyush Sanariya was looking after the works on his behalf.

8. On analyzing the documentary evidences collected during search at the
office premises of M/s K.N. Brothers, Rajkot, a Shroff, and Shri Pravin Shirvi,
Morbi, broker/ middlemen, as well as deposition made by Shri Lalit Ashumal
Gangwani, owner of M/s K.N. Brothers, and Shri Pravin Shirvi in their respective
Statements recorded under Section 14 of the Act, | find that customers of
Appellant No. 1 had deposited cash amount in bank accounts of Shroff M/s K.N.
Brothers, Rajkot, which was converted into cash by them and handed over to
Shri Pravin Shirvi, Morbi, Broker/Middlemen, who admittedly handed over the
said cash amount to Appellant No. 1 through Shri Piyush Sanaria. Shri Piyush he
has categorically admitted that the name Piyush and mobile number mentioned
in the statement of Shri Pravin Shirvi belongs to him. Shri Piyush has also
admitted the collection of cash 4-5 times on behalf of the Appellant No.1. The
fact that name Piyush and mobile number mentioned in Shri Pravin Shirvi’s
statement belong to Shri Piyush S5anaria has also been admitted by Shri
Rajeshbhai, a Director of Appellant No.1, in his statement. Shri Rajeshbhai also
stated that Shri Piyush Sanaria is cousin of Shri Milan Detroja, Shareholder of the
company and works with him in M/s. Famous Vitrified Pvt ltd- Appellant no. 1.
The involvement of Shri Piyush Sanaria in the affairs of the Appellant No. 1 has
also been admitted by Shri Ashwinbhai Director of the Appellant No.1 in his
statement. Shri Ashwinbhai has also admitted that during the year 2014-15 and
2015-16 Shri Piyush Sanaria along with Shri Milan Detroja was handling sales of
tiles and cash transactions of the Appellant No. 1.

8.1  On examining the Statements of Shri Lalit Ashumal Gangwani, owner of
M/s K.N. Brothers, Rajkot, and Shri Pravin Shirvi, Morbi, it is apparent that the
said Statements contained plethora of the facts, which are in the knowledge of
the deponents only. For example, Shri Pravin Shirvi deciphered the meaning of
each and every entry written in the private records seized from his premises. He
also gave details of when and how much cash was delivered to which Tile
manufacturer and even concerned person who had received cash amount. He
deposed that he used to hand over cash received from Shroff to Shri Piyush of
M/s Famous Vitrified Pvt. Ltd, Appellant NO. 1 herein, and also gave mobile
number of Shri Piyush. These facts have been corroborated during investigation
and found to be true as Shri Piyush Sanariya had admitted that the name Piyush
a Mlg__:___ mber belongs to him. Shri Rajeshbhai and Shri Ashwinbhai both

(%

ppellant No.1 have also categorically admitted that Shri Piyush
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Sanaria whose name was given by Shri Pravin Shirvi, was looking after the sales
and sales related financial affairs of the Appellant No.1. It is not the case that
the said statements were recorded under duress or threat. Further, said
statements have not been retracted. So, veracity of deposition made in said
Statements is not under dispute.

8.2 | find that the Appellant No. 1 had devised such a modus operandi that it
was almost impossible to identify buyers of goods or transporters who
transported the goods. The Appellant No. 1 used to inform M/s K.N. Brothers,
Rajkot, a Shroff, or Shri Pravin Shirvi, Morbi, Middlemen, about deposit of cash
in bank accounts of Shroff on receipt of communication from their buyers and
such cash amount would reach to them through middlemen/brokers. When cash
amount was deposited by buyers of goods in bank accounts of Shroff, the name
of the buyer who deposited cash was not reflected in bank statements, as
emerging from the records. So, there was no details of buyers available who had
deposited cash amount in bank accounts of Shroff. This way the Appellant No. 1
was able to hide the identity of buyers of illicitly removed goods. It is a basic
common sense that no person involved in clandestine transactions/ activities will
maintain authentic records of such illegal activities or manufacture being done
by it. It is also not possible to unearth all evidences involved in the case. The
adjudicating authority is required to examine the evidences on record and
decide the case. The Hon’ble High Court in the case of International Cylinders
Pvt Ltd reported at 2010(255) ELT6B(H.P.) has held that once the Department
proves that something illegal had been done by the manufacturer which prima
facie shows that illegal activities were being carried, the burden would shift to

the manufacturer.

8.3 It is also pertinent to mention that the adjudicating authority was not
conducting a trial of a criminal case, but was adjudicating a Show Cause Notice
as to whether there has been clandestine removal of excisable goods without
payment of excise duty. In such cases, preponderance of probabilities would be
sufficient and case is not required to be proved beyond reasonable doubt. | rely
on the Order passed by the Hon'ble CESTAT, Banglore in the case of
Ramachandra Rexins Pvt. Ltd. reported as 2013 (295) E.L.T. 116 (Tri.- Bang.),
wherein it has been held that,
%72 In a case of clandestine activity involving suppression of production and
clandestine removal, it is not expected that such evasion has to be established
by the Department in a mathematical precision. After all. a person indulging
in-clandestine activity takes sufficient precaution to hide/destroy the evidence.
/A ) i:!iE?E@i'iﬂ_i'npc available shall be those left in spite of the best care taken by the
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persons involved in such clandestine activity. In such a situation. the entire
facts and circumstances of the case have to be looked into and a decision has
to be arrived at on the yardstick of ‘preponderance of probability" and not on
the yardstick of *beyond reasonable doubt’, as the decision is being rendered

in quasi-judicial proceedings,”

8.4 | also rely on the Order passed by the Hon’ble Tribunal in the case of
A.N. Guha & Co. reported in 1996 (86) E.L.T. 333(Tri.), wherein it has been held
that,
“In all such cases of clandestine removal, it is not possible for the Department
to prove the same with mathematical precision. The Department is deemed 10
have discharged their burden if they place so much of evidence which, prima
facie, shows that there was a clandestine removal if such evidence is produced
by the Department. Then the onus shifts on to the Appellants to prove that

there was no clandestine removal™.

9. In catena of judgments, it has been held that admitted facts need not be
proved. | rely on the Order passed by the Hon’ble CESTAT, Mumbai in the case of
S.M. Steel Ropes reported as 2014 (304) E.L.T. 591 (Tri. - Mumbai), wherein it
has been held by the Hon'ble Tribunal that,
“The adjudicating authority has confirmed the demand only on the basis of
figures given in the statements ol Shri Balkrishna Agarwal. In the absence of
delivery challans which were recovered and seized at the time of Panchanama
proceedings, he has not taken the computation of demand based on such
delivery challans as reflected in the annexure to the show-cause notice.
Therefore, the adjudicating authority has strictly proceeded based on the
evidences available which in the present case are the statements of Shri
Balkrishna Agarwal. As to the question whether the demands can be
confirmed on the strength of confessional statements, this position stands
settled by the decision of the Hon'ble Apex Court in the case of K./ Pavunny
v. Asstt. Collector (HQ) Central Excise (I'.{:-Hecmrare. Cochin - 1997 (90)
E.L.T. 241 (S.C.) wherein it was held that confessional statement of accused,
if found to be voluntary, can form the sole basis for conviction. Only if it is
retracted, the Court is required to examine whether it was obtained by threat,
duress or promise and whether the confession is truthful. In the present case.
we find that there is no retraction of the confessional statement by Shri
Balkrishna Agarwal. As regards the lack of corroborative evidence. it is a

settled position of law that “admitted facts need not be proved” as held by the

o b

»:j/iﬁﬁﬂ:gtf, h Court of Madras in the case of Govindasamy Ragupathy - 1998
/ 28 ‘}‘J*Ljﬁ (Mad). In a recent decision in the case of Telestar Travels Py,
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Lid - 2013 (289) E.L.T. 3 (S.C.). the Hon'ble Apex Court held that reliance
cun be placed on statement il they are based on consideration of relevant facts
and circumstances and found to be voluntary. Similarly in the case of CCE
Mumbai v. Kalvert Foods India Pvt. Lid - 2011 (270) E.L.T. 643 (S.C.) the

Hon ble Apex Court held that if the statements of the concerned persons are
out of their volition and there is no allegation of threat, force, coercion, duress
or pressure. such statements can be accepted as a valid piece of evidence, In
the light of the above decisions, we are of the considered view that the
confirmation of duty demand based on the voluntary statements of the
Managing Partner ol the appellant tirm 15 sustainable in law. Consequently,

the interest and penal liabilities imposed on the appellants would also sustain.”

10.  After careful examination of evidences available on record in the form of
documentary evidences as well as oral evidence, | am of the considered opinion
that the Department has discharged initial burden of proof for alleging
clandestine removal of goods and the burden of proof shifts to the assessee to
establish by independent evidence that there was no clandestine removal and
the assessee cannot escape from the rigour of law by picking loopholes in the
evidences placed by the Department. | rely on the decision rendered by the
Hon’ble Madras High Court in the case of Lawn Textile Mills Pvt. Ltd. reported as
2018 (362) E.L.T. 559 (Mad.), wherein it has been held that,

“30. The above facts will clearly show that the allegation is one of
clandestine removal, It may be true that the burden of proving such an
allegation is on the Department. However, clandestine removal with an
intention to evade payment of duty is always done in a secret manner and not
as an open Iransaction for the Department to immediately detect the same.
Therelore, in case of clandestine removal, where secrecies involved, there
may be cases where direct documentary evidence will not be available.
However, based on the seized records, it the Department is able to prima facie
establish the case of clandestine removal and the assessee is not able o give
any plausible explanation for the same, then the allegation of clandestine
" removal has to be held to be proved. In other words, the standard and degree
of proof, which is required in such cases, may not be the same, as in other

cases where there is no allegation of clandestine removal.”

11.  The Appellant has contended that since cross examination of
Departmental witnesses were not allowed, their statements cannot be relied
upon while passing the order and determining the duty amount payable by it. In

thisregard t-find that the Appellant No. 1 had sought cross examination of Shri
LA —pt
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Pravin Shirvi, Morbi, Shri Solanki Jayesh Mohanlal, Proprietor of M/s. K. N.
Brothers, Rajkot, and Shri Lalit Ashumal Gangwani, original Proprietor of M/s K.
N. Brothers, Rajkot. The adjudicating authority denied the request of cross

examination by observing in the impugned order, inter alia, as under:

“30.4 Further as discussed above. all the witnesses have admitted their
respective role in this case, under Section 14 of the Central Excise Act, E"*H-l.
voluntarily. which is binding upon them and relied upon in the case of the
Noticee. Further. 1 find that all the wilnesses have not retracted their
statements. Therefore. the same are legal and valid pieces of evidence in the
eyes of law, It 1s a settled legal position that cross examination is not required
to be allowed in all cases, Moreover, there is no provision under the Central
Excise law to allow cross examination of the witnesses. during Adjudication
of the case. The denial of opportunily of cross-examination does not vitiale
the adjudication proceedings. The Adjudicating Authority was not conducting
a trail of a eriminal case, but was Adjudicating a SCN as to whether there has
been clandestine removal of excisable goods withoul payment of duty. | find
that the Noticee has not provided any independent evidence to show that there

was no clandestine removal, ... .7

11.1 | find that none of the Statements of Shroff/ Middlemen/Brokers,
recorded during investigation have been retracted nor there is any allegation of
duress or  threat during recording of  Statements. Further,
Shroff/Middlemen/broker have no reason to depose before the investigating
officers something which is contrary to facts. Also, two Directors of the
Appellant No.1, Shri Rajeshbhai and Shri Ashwinbhai in their statements have
admitted that Shri Piyush Sanariya was involved in sales and sales related
financial transactions of the Appellant No.1. and the Appellant No.1 has not
requested for cross examination of these Directors. It is also on record that
despite three summonses issued by the competent authority, Shri Hiren Kanani
(Appellant No.3), the main Director luakfng; after the overall affairs of the
Appellant No.1, did not appear to give oral statement. This act also suggests

mens-rea of the Appellant No.1 and its main Director.

11.2 It is also pertinent to mention that the present case was not one-off case
involving clandestine removal of goods by Tile manufacturers of Morbi. It is on
record that DGCEl had simultaneously booked offence cases against 186 such

manufacturers for evasion of Central Excise duty who had adopted similar modus

mﬂﬁrw\mutmg sale proceeds of illicitly cleared finished goods through

ahfoffs / qulemenfhrnkers It is also on records that out of said 186
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manufacturers, 61 had admitted and had also paid duty evaded by them. So, the
documentary evidences gathered by the investigating officers from the premises
of Shroffs / middlemen contained trails of illicitly removed goods and
preponderance of probability is certainly against Appellant No. 1. It has been
consistently held by the higher appellate forum that cross examination is not
mandatory and it depends on facts of each and every case. | rely on the decision
rendered by the Hon’'ble Bombay High Court in the case of Patel Engineering Ltd
reported as 2014 (307) E.L.T. 862 (Bom.), wherein it has been held that,

“23. Therefore, we are of the opinion that it will not be correct to hold that
irrespective of the facts and circumstances and in all inquiries. the right of
cross examination can be asserted. Further, as held above which rule or
principle of natural justice must be applied and followed depends upon several
factors and as enumerated above. Even if there is demal of the request to cross
examine the witnesses in an inquiry, without anything more. by such denial
alone, it will not be enough to conclude that principles of natural justice have
been violated. Therefore, the judgments relied upon by Shri Kantawala must be
+ seen in the factual backdrop and peculiar circumstances of the assessee’s case

before this Court.™

11.3 By following the above decision and considering the facts of the case, I_

hold that the adjudicating authority has not erred by not acceding request for

cross examination of the witnesses, as sought by Appellant No. 1.

12. | also find that whatever issues raised by the Appellant No.1 herein,
regarding entries made in the documents resumed during the course of
investigation, non-receipt of certain documents, illegible documents etc., have
been suitably answered by the adjudicating authority in the findings recorded in
impugned order and | see no reason to alter the same.

13.  The Appellant has contended that in the entire case except for so called
evidences of receipt of money from the buyers of tiles through Shroff/
Middlemen/ Broker, no other evidence of manufacture of tiles, procurement of
raw materials including fuel and power for manufacture of tiles, deployment of
staff, manufacture, transportation of raw materials as well as finished goods,
payment to all including raw material suppliers, transporters etc. in cash have
been gathered. The Appellant further contended that no statement of any of
buyers, transporters who transported raw materials and finished goods etc. are
relied upon or even available. It is settled position of law that in absence of such
evidences, grave allegations of clandestine removal cannot sustain and relied

upon various case laws.
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13.1 | find that the investigating officers gathered evidences from the premises
of M/s K.N. Brothers, Rajkot, Shroff, or Shri Pravin Shirvi, Morbi, Middlemen,
which indicted that Appellant No. 1 routed sales proceeds of illicitly removed
goods through the said Shroff and Middlemen/Broker. Further, as discussed
supra, Appellant No. 1 had devised such a modus operandi that it was almost
impossible to identify buyers of goods or transporters who transported the
goods. As a result, no buyers of goods or transporters could be identified during
investigation. In catena of decisions, it has been held that in cases of
clandestine removal, it is not possible to unearth all the evidences and
Department is not required to prove the case with mathematical precision. | rely
on the Order passed by the Hon'ble CESTAT, Ahmedabad in the case of Apurva
Aluminium Corporation reported at 1996 (261) E.L.T. 515(Tri. Ahmd.), wherein
at Para 5.1 of the order, the Tribunal has held that,

“Once again. the onus of proving that they have accounted for all the goods
produced, shifts to the appellants and lhé:f have failed to discharge this
burden. They want the department to show challanwise details of goods
transported or not transported. There are several decisions of Hon'ble
Supreme Court and High Courts wherem 1t has been held that in such
clandestine activities, only the person who indulges in such activities khows
all the details and it would not be possible for any investigating officer to
unearth all the evidences required and prove with mathematical precision. the

evasion or the other illegal activities™.

14, In view of above, the various contentions raised by Appellant No. 1 are of
no help to them and they have failed to discharge the burden cast on them that
they had not indulged in clandestine removal of goods. On the other hand, the
Department has adduced sufficient oral and documentary corroborative
evidences to demonstrate that Appellant No. 1 indulged in clandestine removal
of goods and evaded payment of Central Excise duty. |, therefore, hold that
confirmation of demand of Central Excise duty amount of Rs. 1,67,13,094/- by
the adjudicating authority is correct, legal and proper. Since demand s
confirmed, it is natural consequence that the confirmed demand is required.to
be paid along with interest at applicable rate under Section 11AA of the Act. |,
therefore, uphold order to pay interest on confirmed demand.
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15.  The Appellant has also contended that Tiles were notified at 5r. No. 58
and 59 under Notification No. 49/2008-C.E.(N.T.) dated 24.12.2008, as
amended, issued under Section 4A of the Act and duty was payable on the retail
sale price declared on the goods less abatement @ 45%. Though there is no
evidence of manufacture and clearance of goods that too without declaration of
RSP/MRP, duty is assessed considering the so called alleged realised value as
abated value without any legal backing. The Appellant further contended that
duty is to be determined as per Section 4A(4) of the Act read with Rule 4(i) of
Central Excise (Determination of Retail Sale Price of Excisable Goods) Rules;
2008, which provided that highest of the RSP/MRP declared on the goods during

the previous or succeeding months is to be taken for the purpose of assessment.

15.1 | find it is pertinent to examine the provisions contained in Section 4A of
the Act, which are reproduced as under:
“Section 4A. Valuation of excisable goods with reference 1o retail sale price.-
(1) The Central Government may. by notification in the Official Gazette,
" specify any goods, in relation to which it is required, under the provisions of
the [Legal Metrology Act, 2009 (1 of 2010)] or the rules made thereunder or
under any other law for the time being in force, 1o declare on the package
thereof the retail sale price of such goods. to which the provisions ol sub-

section (2) shall apply.

(2) Where the goods specified under sub-section (1) are excisable goods and
are chargeable to duty ol excise with reference to value, then, notwithstanding
anything contained in section 4, such value shall be deemed to be the retail
sale price declared on such goods less such amount of abatement, if any, from
such retail sale price as the Central Government may allow by notification in

the Official Gazette.”

15.2° | find that in terms of the Legal Metrology Act, 2009, retail sale price is
required to be declared on packages when sold to retail customers. This would
mean that when goods are sold to customers, other than retail customers, like
institutional customers, the provisions of Legal Metrology Act, 2009 would not be
applicable.

15.3  On examining the present case in backdrop of above provisions, | find that
Appellant No. 1 has not produced any evidences that the goods were sold to
retail customers. Further, as discussed above, Appellant No.1 had adopted such
a modus operandi that identity of buyers could not be ascertained during

- investj%ation. Since, applicability of provisions contained in Legal Metrology
2 ___.--.—-'.su-.i. 2 .
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Act,2009 itself is not confirmed, it is not possible to extend benefit of
abatement under Section 4A of the Act. Even if it is presumed that all the goods
sold by Appellant No.1 were to retail customers then also what was realised
through Shroff/Middlemen cannot be considered as MRP value for the reason
that in cases when goods are sold through dealers, realised value would be less

than MRP value since dealer price is always less than MRP price.

15.4 As régards contention of Appellant No.1 that duty is to be determined as
per Section 4A(4) of the Act read with Rule 4(i) of Central Excise [Dete?mination
of Retail Sale Price of Excisable Goods) Rules, 2008, | find it is pertinent to
examine the provisions of Rule 4 ibid, which are reproduced as under:

“RULE 4. Where a manufacturer removes the excisable goods specified

under sub-section (1) of section 4A of the Act, -

(a) without declaring the retail sale price on the packages ol such goods:
or

(b) by declaring the retail sale price. which is not the retail sale price as
required to be declared under the provisions of the Standards of Weights and
Measures Act, 1976 (60 of 1976) or rules made thereunder or any other law
for the time being in force; or

(c) by declaring the retail sale price but obliterates the same after their
removal [rom the place of manufacture,

then, the retail sale price of such goods shall be ascertained in the following
manner. namely :-

(i) if the manufacturer has manufactured and removed identical goods. within
a period of one month, before or after removal of such goods, by declaring the
retail sale price, then, the said declared retail sale price shall be taken as the
retail sale price of such goods :

(ii) if the retail sale price cannot be ascertained in terms of clause (i), the retail
sale price of such goods shall be ascertained by conducting the enguiries in
the retail market where such goods have normally been sold at or about the
same time of the removal of such goods from the place of manufacture :

Provided that if more than one retail sale price is ascertained under clause (i)
or clause (ii), then, the highest of the retail sale price. so ascertained. shall be
taken as the retail sale price of all such goods.”

15.5 | find that in the present case, the Appellant No. 1 has not den{onstrated
as to how their case is covered by any of the situation as envisaged under sub

clause (a), (b) or (c) of Rule 4 ibid. Hence, provisions of Rule 4(i) ibid are not
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15.6 In view of above, plea of Appellant No. 1 to assess the goods under

Section 4A of the Act cannot be accepted.

16. The Appellant has contended that all the allegations are baseless and
totally unsubstantiated, therefore, question of alleged suppression of facts etc.
also does not arise. The Appellant further contended that none of the situation
suppression of facts, willful mis-statement, fraud, collusion etc. as stated in
Section 11A(4) of the Central Excise Act, 1944 exists in the instant case but it is
alleged suppression of facts in the impugned order based on the general
allegation. | find that the Appellant No. 1 was found indulging in clandestine
removal of goods and routed the cash through Shroff/Middlemen/Broker. The
modus operandi adopted by Appellant No. 1 was unearthed during investigation
carried out against them by DGCEI, Ahmedabad. Thus, this is a clear case of

suppression of facts with intent to evade payment of duty. Considering the facts

‘of the case, | am of the opinion that the adjudicating authority was justified in

invoking extended period of limitation on the grounds of suppression of facts.
Since invocation of extended period of limitation on the grounds of suppression
of facts is upheld, penalty under Section 11AC of the Act is mandatory, as has
been held by the Hon'ble Supreme Court in the case of Rajasthan Spinning &
Weaving Mills reported as 2009 (238) E.L.T. 3 (5.C.), wherein it is held that when
there are ingredients for invoking extended period of limitation for demand of
duty, imposition of penalty under Section 11AC is mandatory. The ratio of the
said judgment applies to the facts of the present case. |, therefore, uphold
penalty of Rs. 1,67,13,094/- imposed under Section 11AC of the Act.

17.  Regarding penalty imposed upon Appellant No. 2 and Appellant No. 3
under Rule 26 of the Rules, | find that Shri Piyush Sanaria, Appellant No.2, was
the person responsible for handling transactions of clandestinely cleared goods
of the Appellant No.1 including collection of cash pertaining to such transaction
from the middleman/broker. The Appellant No. 3 Shri Hirenbhai Rasiklal Kanani
was the key person and main director of the Appellant No.1 looking after the
work of the overall administration of the company, finance, sale, marketing etc.
as admitted by Shri Rajeshbhai and Shri Ashwinbhai, other Directors of the
Appellant No. 1. Being the key person of the Appellant No.1, it is obvious that he
would be aware of the clandestine clearance of the goods - manufactured by his
company and consequence of such illicit transactions, which includes
confiscation of such goods. |, therefore, find that imposition of penalty of Rs.
50,00,000/- each upon Appellant No. 2 and Appellant No. 3 under Rule 26(1) of

the Rules is correct and legal.
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18. In view of above, | uphold the impugned order and reject the appeals
filed by Appellant Nos. 1 to 3.

19.  FNEFAEaRESAREES HdEH A TeREuRFTa A R |

19.  The appeals filed by the Appellants are disposed off as above.
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